
Officer Key Decision 

This decision contains information which is exempt from publication by virtue of 
Paragraph [X] of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972

Title of Report: Tender Award for 9 X 18T Cab/Chassis, 6x Demount Tippers & 3 x 
Hotbox

Decision of: Executive Director for Economy and Infrastructure

Cabinet Member: Cllr Keith Little
___________________________________________________________________

1) What is the decision about? 

The purpose of this briefing paper is to provide the Executive Director for Economy and 
Infrastructure & DMT colleagues with the results of a procurement exercise to acquire 9 x 
Cab/Chassis 6 x Demount Tippers and 3 x Demount Hot boxes, and to seek permission to 
award various contracts to the appropriate suppliers following proper approvals.

2) Recommendation(s) to the Executive Director?

To approve the purchase of 9 Truck cab Chassis, 6 Demountable tipper bodies and 
3 Demountable Hot Boxes

3) Background to the proposals

Full Council approved, in February 2019, the Highways vehicle Capital Programme for 
2020/21. The Executive Director of Economy & Infrastructure on 21 August 2019  authorised 
a procurement exercise for the purchase of various items of specialist equipment, in this 
instance, 9 x 18t Cab/Chassis, suitable of carrying/operating a demount system, 6 x Demount 
Tippers and 3 x demount Hotboxes. A procurement exercise has been undertaken by the 
Yorkshire Purchasing Organisation, (YPO mini-competition), on the County Councils behalf, 
using its National Framework Agreement to acquire such vehicles

A tender evaluation Team comprising Transport Programme Officer and the Senior Manager 
for Highways Delivery has undertaken the evaluation of the tender returns (five tender returns). 
The table at appendix 1 describes the results of the Tender evaluation process. 

The tender returns were very comprehensive, included a lot of technical information, with 
clarification questions and meetings to establish exactly what was being offered and required 
some time to evaluate 



Following extensive soft market research before the tendering process about the vehicle types 
and demount systems that the Council could operate going forward, and the ability for 
interoperability with other demount systems.

The ODR for this piece of work also included the issue that the Chassis were likely to exceed 
the £500k limit (the guestimate in the ODR was £660K) and therefore were likely to require 
Forward Plan approval process. Following tender evaluation that is the case.

The mini competition was undertaken requiring suppliers to submit quotations for two lots.  Lot 
3 was for 4x4, 18/19 Tonne Chassis Cab (for Multi Body Use) and Lot 4 was for Multi-Purpose 
Demount Bodes (6 x Tippers, 3 x Hot Boxes). 

Lot 3 – Chassis/Cab Supply

Only four suppliers provide a tender return for Lot 3 all of which were compliant with the 
provided specification. The lowest tender for the specified chassis/cab was Guest. The tender 
return price was £ 69,976.00 per vehicle, £629,784 in total. The next lowest tender price was 
Econ at £70,539.52 per vehicle, £634,855.68 in total, a difference of £5,071.68.

Lot 4 – Sub frame, Demount Tipper & Demount Hotbox supply

Five suppliers provide tender returns for Lot 4 four of which were compliant with the provided 
specification. The lowest tender for the specified demountable Sub frame, Tipper and Hotbox 
was Econ was as follows:

Sub frame £18.814.24 x9 £169.328.16

Tipper Body £12,529.05 x6 £75,174.30

Hot Box £30,313.58 x3 £90,940.74

Making the total tender price for Lot 4: £335,443.20

The items in Lot 4 normally do not require the Forward Plan process to be instigated however 
it is proposed that due to the savings that can be reasonably anticipated over a ten year period 
by not having to deal with two supplier in relation to the same vehicle which has proven 
somewhat difficult in the past, it is recommended that the Council purchase these items 
through a sole supplier at an additional cost of £5,071.68 for all 9 vehicles and bodies.

In addition, having reviewed each of the bids in relation to Quality, Delivery, Cost and 
Sustainability the tenders scored as follows out of a possible 50:

Cuthbertsons 35

DAF 31.5

Motus 25.5

Econ 38

Guest 26.5

This would again support the proposal of purchasing the vehicles through a soil supplier.



4) Reasons for the recommendation(s)

Purchasing these vehicles at this time is the start of an overhaul of the entire winter 
fleet.  Current we have 38 dedicated gritters which stand for 7 months of the year all 
be it for the odd large diesel spillage. This is both costly as a dedicated fleet (initial 
purchase)  but also extremely costly to maintain this fleet due, in the main to a lack 
of use over the summer months. 

It is proposed that over the next four years the current winter fleet will be replaced 
with this demountable system which would allow the vehicles to be used all year in 
different formats (Tipper, Gritters, Hotbox) adding further savings to the service  by 
no longer hiring additional vehicles as and when required. These savings can then 
be used to carry out additional highway repairs.

The Exec Director Economy & Infrastructure agrees the recommendations, and the Forward 
Plan procedure is instigated for the awarding the Lot 3 - Chassis contract and Lot 4- Sub 
frame, Demountable Tipper and Demountable Hotbox.

The AD Highway & Transport approves the Tender Award Certificates, and following such 
approvals, Letters are sent to the successful and unsuccessful tenderers detailing the results. 
Following that communication a Ten day stand still position is maintained, allowing any 
unsuccessful tenderers the opportunity to receive feedback on their tender returns.
After the ten day stand still period, Senior Manager, Highways Delivery  & Fleet officers meet 
with the successful tenderer(s) and agree final specification details, and subject to those 
meeting being satisfactory a Purchase Order will be raised with the successful Tenderer

5) What options have been considered?

To retain the existing winter fleet which is currently 9 years old and costly to maintain 
as well as being out of date and less efficient in it operations due to its age.
To hire a winter fleet which has been soft market tested to be approximately £800 
per week per vehicle, which would equal approximately £790k per year totalling 
£7.9m over 10 years plus interest. 

6) What risks have been identified? 

Failing to replace this fleet over the coming years will require significate investment 
to ensure roadworthiness as well as additional costs to ensure it can continue to 
operate in an efficient manner. 

Failure of the winter fleet would mean that the Counil could well fail in its duty to 
provide a Winter Service, a requirement under the Highways Act 1984.

7) What resources will be needed/how will the proposal be funded?  

This proposal is included within the 2020/21 Capital Vehicle replacement budget.



8) What Legal considerations are relevant to the decision?

Executive member Consultation

Name: 

Details of any registrable interest relevant to the decision: 

Details of any dispensation granted: 

Key Decisions

Notice on Forward Plan?  Yes/No/NA

Rule 15 Notice?  Yes/No/NA

Rule 16 Approval by Chair of Scrutiny Board?  Yes/No/NA
(Attach Approval)

Exempt from Call in?  Yes/No/NA
(Attach Approval)

Decision

Signature of the decision record authorises the implementation (following expiry of 
the Call In period where applicable) of the recommendations in Section 2.

Signature of decision maker: 

Name: 

Post title: 

Date: 

Delegated authority to make the decision: 


